
MINUTES OF THE
HIGHER EDUCATION APPROPRIATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE

MONDAY, JANUARY 26, 1998, 2:00 P.M.
Room 223, State Capitol Building

Members Present: Sen. David Steele, Committee Co-Chair
Rep. Afton Bradshaw, Committee Co-Chair
Sen. Lyle Hillyard
Sen. George Mantes
Sen. Nathan Tanner
Rep. Sheryl L. Allen
Rep. Mary Carlson
Rep. Orville D. Carnahan
Rep. Margaret Dayton
Rep.  Swen Nielsen
Rep. Carl. R. Saunders

Members Absent: Rep. Patricia B. Larson

Members Excused: Rep. Martin R. Stephens

Staff Present: Boyd A. Garriott, Senior Legislative Fiscal Analyst
Kevin Walthers, Legislative Fiscal Analyst
Rolayne Day, Secretary

Others Present: Commissioner Cecelia H. Foxley
President George Emert, USU
President Frank Budd, SLCC
President Kerry Romesburg, UVSC
President Bernie Machen, UU
Ralph Hardy, UU
Dr. Brad Winn, GOPB
President Steven Bennion, SUU
Dr. Carol Berrey, WSU
Damon Watkins, UU Studentbody President & ASU President
Marla Kennedy, SLCC Studentbody President & ASU VP
Russell Kennedy, Utah Student Association
Regent Pamela Atkinson
Nancy Secrist, UPEA
Dr. Douglas Perkins, Associate Professor UU

List of Others Present on File:

Committee Co-Chair Steele called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m.

1. Enrollment Growth and Mix Change—Commissioner Foxley distributed a handout showing 1998-99
enrollment funding scenarios.  In the past, enrollment was funded with a prediction formula.  Sometimes
funding covered those attending and sometimes it did not, even though the students were accepted at the
institutions.  Funding is now done on a one-year lag where the institutions admit the students and carry



Minutes of the Joint Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee
January 26, 1998
Page 2

them for a year based on the tuition they pay.  There is also a ±2% target-enrollment buffer for actual
enrollment fluxuations.

As the Legislature funded enrollment targets over the last six years, the University of Utah received no
funding because their growth was in upper division (as per the Regents' plan).  They were not receiving
increased funding for students who are more expensive to educate.  The Regents felt the University
wasn't being fairly compensated for following the plan and would like to adjust their enrollment target.

Commissioner Foxley said the analysts applied the formula to all institutions with no 2% flex allowance
for enrollment swings.  The Regents agree that a change needs to be made, but they feel a five- or six-
year period would provide a better benchmark.  Enrollment funding only funds a faculty member in front
of the class; it doesn't fund other services needed by students such as counseling, advising, registration,
O & M, etc. Many students go part time but they require the same services as full-time students. 

The Regents are requesting $3.9 million while the analysts recommend $2.4 million for enrollment
growth.  The analysts' plan takes money from the University of Utah and also penalizes USU who's
enrollment has grown.  Weber has grown 200 FTE, but the analysts would cut $452,000 from their
enrollment funding.  Commissioner Foxley asked the Committee to look at a legitimate mix change and
amount of funding with a five- or six-year trend including a 2% flex.  

Analyst Boyd Garriott said the Regents and the Analysts recognize that enrollments are growing at a
number of institutions.  He distributed a handout showing that the U is still over funded by 46 students
and CEU over funded by 35 students when the 2% flux is taken into consideration.  

Because the enrollment model should be self correcting, the analysts looked at the level of instruction
as well as growth numbers.  Student mix changes create a different cost of instruction resulting in an
over-inflated cost of instruction at USU, for example, of nearly $1,000.  The analysts only applied the
principle to those institutions that exceeded the 2% cushion or where there was growth.  They
recommend $5,927,200 system wide for adjustments in student enrollment.  Page 25 of the analysts'
budget recommendations shows how that affects each institution.

President George Emert, USU, said there can be a change in the mix that doesn't reflect a trend; the
analysts approach puts USU at a disadvantage.  He said there is a need to look at the situation over a
period of years rather than just one year.

Mr. Garriott said they just wanted to use a base year and that the formula needs to be self correcting.
The number of years to be used could be worked out if the Committee makes a decision to follow the
analysts' recommendation.

Commissioner Foxley said the system is going to semesters and they anticipate quite a dip in enrollments
as students get used to taking more classes.  She doesn't want to further harm the institutions with lower
enrollment growth funding.

MOTION: Rep. Saunders moved to ask the Fiscal Analysts to compile enrollment figures for each of
the institutions for the last six years.

Sen. Tanner said a six-year average could mask trends.  Rep. Nielsen said if actual numbers are used
rather than projections, averages won't be a problem.  Sen. Hillyard said the actual number of funded
students also needs to be looked at.  There should be some incentives for the institutions to accept
transfer students.  Mr. Garriott said that in years when the Legislature did not fully fund enrollment
growth, they did fund it the following year.



Minutes of the Joint Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee
January 26, 1998
Page 3

The motion passed unanimously with Rep. Carnahan absent at the time of voting.

Commissioner Foxley recognized the presence of Regent Pamela Atkinson.

Mr. Garriott said the semester issue is a valid point.  The Committee may want to endorse a moratorium
on downward growth so institutions are not unnecessarily penalized.  President Kerry Romesberg,
UVSC, said FTEs could go down as much as 20%.  Sen. Steele said the Committee Co-Chairs would get
together with the analysts to prepare a statement for the Committee to act upon.  Commissioner Foxley
expressed appreciation for the Committee's understanding and said  the institutions are doing all they can
to advise students, but there is no way of really knowing what will happen.  

The analysts recommend that since the University of Utah's actual enrollment remains below the funded
target, the Legislature should make budget adjustments for the mix change simply by reducing the
university's funded target to actual enrollment; next year the University's base will be 20,699 FTE.
President Bernie Machen, UU, said the mix problem impacts what it costs to educate students.  He was
impressed that the Committee is willing to look at a policy change. 

President Frank Budd, SLCC, said the relationship with transfer-receiving institutions has improved
immensely.  He would not like to see any policies that would put the U at a disadvantage and threaten
that relationship.  

Dr. Brad Winn, GOPB, said the Governor accepted and recommend the Regents' requests based on the
2% flux.

2. Tuition—Mr. Garriott indicated that the analysts followed legislative policy in using tuition increase
revenues to fund compensation.  If the compensation increase is more than 3%, funding will need to
come from another source.

Currently, graduate tuition is figured at 110% of regular tuition.  However, a full-time graduate student
takes 10 credit hours while a full-time undergraduate takes 15 credit hours.  Therefore, graduate students
are only paying 22% of the average cost to educate them.  The analysts looked at 30 institutions across
the country and a handout was distributed showing the comparisons of graduate and undergraduate
annualized tuition at several of those institutions.  The analysts feel it is important for graduate students
to bear a more proportionate cost of instruction which would result in a $2 million revenue increase at
the U and $700,000 at USU.  The analysts request that the Legislature look at this issue.

The Regents are looking at a new master plan including tuition policies and Commissioner Foxley would
like to have the interim to address the analysts' request.  They don't want to price people out of an
education.  Student diversity is also an important factor to be considered, and she agreed that students
should pay their fair share.

President Emert said pursuit of excellence for graduate students is incredibly intense.  Graduate students
need to be treated well because they bring grants and prestige to the institutions.  It should also be noted
that tuition and fees are often waived or paid by grants.  Twenty percent of the graduate students are not
matriculated.  

President Machen said tuition is often set at what the competitive market can bear.  He asked that the
Regents be allowed to conduct a survey to see how the analysts' recommendations would play out.  

President Steven Bennion, SUU, said most of SUU's graduate students are residents who are going back
to school to upgrade or add a degree.  A dramatic tuition jump would hurt those students.  Dr. Carol
Berrey, WSU, said displacing costs on students who are already struggling would hurt them.  



Minutes of the Joint Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee
January 26, 1998
Page 4

Rep. Saunders asked if out-of-state students are accepted into graduate school over Utah citizens because
they bring in more tuition.  President Machen said that, although student diversity is desired, Utah
students are given priority.

Dr. Winn feels tuition policy should be made with the students' ability to pay in mind as well as regional
rates and the state's ability to look at more than funding faculty raises.  Sen. Tanner said the earning
potential of graduate students is a great incentive to gain an education.  Rep. Carlson said the universities
must find a tuition amount that allows balance so they can attract the best students.

Commissioner Foxley believes it is not a good policy to increase tuition to compensate faculty.  Mr.
Garriott said that any income generated across the state is used proportionally to fund compensation.
Higher Education receives income from tuition that becomes dedicated credits.  Commissioner Foxley
said Utah families have more members in the family attending institutions of higher education than any
other state; raising tuition, therefor, greatly impacts Utah families.

Damon Watkins, Studentbody President at the UU and President of the Utah Student Association, and
Marla Kennedy, SLCC Studentbody President and Vice President of the Utah Student Association,
endorsed the 2.7% tuition hike proposed by the Regents, and expressed appreciation for the opportunity
to be in on the decision.  They do not feel that compensation should be tied to tuition increases.  Russell
Kennedy, SUU student, said he is very committed to the fairness of the tuition increase decision. 

Regent Pamela Atkinson spoke in behalf of low-income students.  It is not known how many students
don't go to college because of a rise in tuition.  She asked that the Committee keep low-income students
as well as the average student in mind when discussing tuition increases.

Sen. Steele said if compensation is raised to 4%, one-fourth of it must come from tuition increases.  Mr.
Garriott said tuition would need to be raised 3.7% to cover a 4% compensation increase.  Commissioner
Foxley feels it becomes divisive when you have to weigh faculty and staff who are worth an increase
against already-burdened students.  When tuition wasn't raised, the full compensation increase came from
state funds.  She asked that a percentage come from the E & G funds.

3. Compensation—Commissioner Foxley stated that higher education salaries are generally lower than
comparable institutions and faculty are not over paid.  Dr. Winn said the Governor recommends a 4%
compensation increase costing $20 million; $18 million from the General Fund and $2 million from
dedicated credits.

Nancy Secrist, UPEA, said they would like to see tuition and compensation separated.

4. System Operation and Maintenance—Operation and maintenance are real costs that must be paid through
one of three sources:  (1) separate non-state funding assured through private contracts of O & M
endowment by a private donor; (2) absorbed within existing institutional budgets; or (3) a request
through legislative appropriation.  Higher education finds it very difficult to get a building donor to also
give O & M funding.  The Regents bring items to the Legislature that they feel warrant funding by the
state.

The Regents feel the Biology Research Center at the University warrants O & M funding because
instruction takes place there, it follows the mission of the institution, and they have explored other
sources of funding.  The building is a state investment and not funding O & M amounts to a budget cut
for the U.

Analyst Kevin Walthers said determining which requests to fund was a difficult decision because there
was only so much money left.  They were hoping the biology building could be funded through



Minutes of the Joint Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee
January 26, 1998
Page 5

reimbursed overhead.  He said that USU's Recycling Center should find a way to be more cost effective.
If they had more funds, they could have done more.

The analysts do recommend O & M funding for the Huntsman Cancer Center at $392,800, SUU's
Technology Building at $22,400, Snow's Noyes Building at $19,500, Dixie's Harmon's property at $6,600
and the Dixie Center at $411,000, CEU's Student Center at $109,700 and the San Juan Campus Center
at $41,000, and SLCC's South City Annex at $17,900.

President Machen questioned the policy that leads presidents to believe the O & M would be paid when
it is not.  He assumed that if buildings contributed to the mission of the institution, it would be funded.
Mr. Walthers said the analysts looked for projects that could find other sources for O & M.  President
Machen said the biology building was built with reimbursed overhead and an O & M funding policy
based on probability is not a solid basis to deny a request.  Mr. Walthers said that is true in a perfect
budget world.  President Machen said the rules need to be clarified before starting construction.  Mr.
Garriott said the analysts examined the budget thoroughly and tried to make sound policy decisions while
balancing the budget.  Many departments across the state are in the same position as higher education
and hard decisions had to be made.  President Machen said he could accept that there was not enough
money to fund all requests.  He asked the legislators to add O & M to the list of  hot spot items to be
funded at the end of the session.

Rep. Allen said presidents are expected to go to the private sector for funding of projects.  She hopes the
issues can be addressed so as not to provide disincentives for them to do as they are asked.  Rep. Carlson
agreed with Rep. Allen and doesn't want the presidents to refuse donations because they can't pay for O
& M.  

Sen. Tanner said the rules haven't changed because the Regents have had a policy regarding O & M for
a long time.  Commissioner Foxley thinks there needs to be a change regarding transportation funding
when it is at the expense of the rest of the state's needs.  Higher education has been given far too lean
an allotment to cover base budgets.  

Dr. Douglas Perkins, Associate Professor of Consumer Studies at the University of Utah, said his salary
is far below industry and faculty at peer institutions.

MOTION:  Rep. Bradshaw moved to adjourn.

The motion passed with Rep. Carnahan absent at the time of voting.

Co-Chair Steele adjourned the meeting at 4:42 p.m.

Minutes were reported by Rolayne Day, Secretary.

Sen. David H. Steele, Committee Co-Chair Rep. Afton Bradshaw, Committee Co-Chair


